AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS OF ARROWHEAD ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.

ARTICLE 1 GENERAL

Section 1.1 Adoption

These Amended and Restated Bylaws of Arrowhead Electric Cooperative, Inc. (the "Cooperative") shall constitute the Bylaws of the Cooperative as of June 4, 2022 (the "Bylaws") and shall restate and replace fully any and all prior bylaws of the Cooperative.

Section 1.2 Applicable Law

These Bylaws are subject to applicable law and the Articles of Incorporation, as may be amended and/or restated, of the Cooperative (the "Articles"). If, and to the extent that, a Bylaw conflicts with law or the Articles, then the law or Articles control.

ARTICLE 2 MEMBERSHIP

Section 2.1 Requirements for Membership

Any person or entity that has the legal capacity to enter into a binding contract may become a member of the Cooperative upon receipt of electric service from the Cooperative provided that the member:

- a) has completed a membership application provided by the Cooperative;
- b) paid, and continues to pay, the fixed minimum monthly charge;
- c) consumes, receives, purchases, or otherwise uses, when available, electric energy generated, transmitted, distributed, sold, supplied, furnished, or otherwise provided by the Cooperative;
- d) agrees to pay the prices, rates, and/or amounts determined by the Cooperative, and pursuant to the terms and conditions specified by the Cooperative, for the electric energy provided by the Cooperative;
- e) agrees to comply with, and be bound by, the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws and any amendments thereto, and such rules, policies, and regulations as may from time to time be adopted by the Board of Directors.
- f) as required by the Cooperative for the purpose of providing electric service or providing any other service by the Cooperative or a subsidiary and/or affiliate of the Cooperative, an easement on, over, above, across, and/or under any real property owned by the

member in accordance with such reasonable terms and conditions as the Cooperative shall require.

A member who meets the requirements set forth herein shall be referred to as a "Member." No Member may hold more than one membership in the Cooperative, and no membership in the Cooperative shall be transferable, except as provided in these Bylaws.

The form of the membership application shall be prescribed and amended from time to time by the Board of Directors.

Section 2.2 <u>Joint Membership</u>

Two or more adult persons, legal entities, or combination thereof, may apply for joint membership and, subject to their compliance with the requirements set forth in these Bylaws, may be accepted for such membership. The term "Member" as used in these bylaws shall be deemed to include those holding a joint membership and those Members who are legally married shall be deemed to have a joint membership unless both spouses provide written notice to the Cooperative to the contrary. Any provisions relating to the rights and liabilities of membership shall apply equally with respect to the holding of a joint membership shall be as follows:

- a) notice of a meeting provided to one joint member constitutes notice to all joint members;
- b) waiver of notice of a meeting signed by one joint member constitutes waiver of notice for all joint members;
- c) the presence of one or more joint members at a meeting constitutes the presence of one Member at the meeting;
- d) the presence of one joint member at a meeting waives notice of the meeting for all joint members;
- e) the presence of one joint member at a meeting may invalidate a mail ballot or electronic ballot previously submitted by the joint member;
- f) if only one joint member votes on a matter, signs a petition, consent, waiver, or other document; or otherwise acts, then the vote, signature, or action binds the joint members and constitutes one vote, signature, or action;
- g) if more than one joint member votes on a matter, signs a petition, consent, waiver, or other document, or otherwise acts, then the first vote, signature, or action received by the Cooperative binds the joint members and constitutes one vote, signature, or action of the joint members;
- h) except upon the cessation of the legally recognized relationship, the suspension or termination of a joint member constitutes the suspension or termination of joint members;

- i) a joint member qualified to be a member of the Board of Directors may be a Director, regardless of whether another joint member is qualified to be a Director, but if more than one joint member is qualified to be a Director, then only one joint member may be a Director;
- j) upon the death of any those holding a joint membership, such membership shall be held solely by the survivors;
- k) joint membership shall not terminate by the result of a divorce or separation;
- l) joint membership shall continue until such time as the Cooperative shall receive sufficient notice, in writing, of any change in status, or request to change the status, signed by all of the joint members; and
- m) a joint membership may be transferred by a joint member to a single member, another joint membership, or to the remaining holder or holders of the joint membership upon written request of all joint members and upon agreement to be bound by the terms and conditions of Section 2.1 of this Bylaw.

Section 2.3 Purchase of Electric Energy

Each Member shall sign the membership application for electric service. Except as applicable federal and state statutes and regulations may require, each Member shall, as soon as electric service shall be available, purchase from the Cooperative all electric energy used on the premises specified in the application for membership, and shall pay therefore, at rates which shall from time to time be fixed by the Board. Each Member shall also pay to the Cooperative such minimum amount regardless of the amount of electric energy consumed, as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors from time to time. Each Member shall also pay all amounts owed by the member to the Cooperative as and when the same shall become due and payable.

Section 2.4 Member Responsibilities

As a condition of becoming and remaining a Member, each Member agrees as follows:

- a) To allow the Cooperative to construct, operate, relocate, reconstruct, replace, and maintain above or below ground electric distribution line or system on or under the Member's property, and above or below the ground upon all streets, roads, or highways abutting the Member's property.
- b) To allow the Cooperative to read, inspect, replace, and/or maintain metering and load management control equipment.
- c) To allow the Cooperative to inspect and make such repairs, changes, alterations, improvements, removals from, substitutions, and additions to Cooperative facilities as the Cooperative may from time to time deem advisable.

- d) Acknowledges that all of the Cooperative's lines and facilities remain the property of the Cooperative.
- e) To keep the Cooperative's right of way and/or easement free and clear of all buildings, structures, and other obstructions.
- f) To give the Cooperative, by any means reasonable, necessary, and/or appropriate, rights to cut, trim and/or remove any obstruction, vegetation, and/or tree that the Cooperative, its agents or assigns, deem would be a danger to its facilities, even if such tree, obstruction, and/or vegetation is outside of an easement granted.
- g) To allow the Cooperative to take any action it deems reasonable and necessary to protect the Cooperative's facilities.
- h) To comply with the National Electrical Code, all Minnesota, federal, and local laws, codes, ordinances, statutes, and regulations regulating the installation of electrical wiring and equipment, and such rules, codes, and regulations as may be adopted by the Minnesota State Board of Electricity, and upon request, the Member shall provide to the Cooperative proper evidence of compliance with permit requirements prior to connection of electric service.
- i) To release and indemnify, defend, and hold the Cooperative harmless from and against any and all liability of every kind and nature which may occur from the Member's or the Member's agent's defect, negligence, or improper use or maintenance of the Member's premises and all wiring and apparatus connected thereto or used thereon.
- j) To allow the Cooperative to license, permit, or otherwise allow the joint use or occupancy of the Cooperative's lines, system, and/or facilities, or if any of its facilities, by any other person, association, or legal entity. The Cooperative may permit the attachment of wires or other structures of others to the Cooperative's facilities.
- k) To not do any act which will interfere with or harm the Cooperative's facilities.
- That the Cooperative may use Cooperative equipment to measure, collect, maintain, transmit, communicate, and store the aggregate or incremental amount, quantity, or quality of electric energy/service used by a Member and other data or information regarding the Member's use of electric energy/service.
- m) To allow, and the Member consents to, the Cooperative using an automatic telephone dialing or text message system, or an artificial or pre-recorded voice, to contact the Member regarding the Cooperative, the Member's Cooperative service, or the Member's use of a Cooperative service.
- n) To pay interest and late fees as reasonably determined by the Board of Directors and all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, required to collect or obtain payment of amounts owed but to the Cooperative.

- o) To indemnify, defend, and hold the Cooperative harmless from and against any and all liabilities, damages, costs, or expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses, incurred by the Cooperative, or by a Cooperative director, officer, employee, agent, or representative, and caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the Member or non-member occupying the premises owned by the Member, or by the unsafe or defective condition of the premises owned by the Member.
- p) Make available to the Cooperative a suitable site, as determined by the Cooperative, to place its physical facilities for furnishing, maintaining, and metering of all electric service used on premises and shall permit Cooperative's authorized employees, agents, and independent contractors to have access hereto and without interference from disconnection of such facilities or services at all reasonable times.
- q) Be responsible for furnishing electric and other service beyond the point of delivery by the Cooperative.

Section 2.5 <u>Termination of Membership</u>

Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, a Member is terminated upon:

- a) the Member's death, legal dissolution, or legal cessation of existence;
- b) the Member requesting termination;
- c) the Member ceasing to use service provided by the Cooperative; or
- d) the Cooperative learning that the Member has ceased using any service provided by the Cooperative.

Termination of a Member does not release the Member from debts, liabilities, or obligations owed to the Cooperative.

ARTICLE 3 RIGHTS & LIABILITIES OF MEMBERS

Section 3.1 Property Interest of Members Upon Dissolution of the Cooperative

Upon dissolution of the Cooperative and after:

- a) all debts and liabilities of the Cooperative shall have been paid, and;
- b) all capital furnished through patronage shall have been retired as provided in these Bylaws, the remaining property and assets of the Cooperative shall be distributed among the Members and former Members in the proportion which the aggregate

patronage of each bears to the total patronage of all Members during the ten calendar years preceding the date of the filing of the certification of dissolution.

Section 3.2 Non-Liability for Debts of the Cooperative

The private property of the Members and Nonmember Patrons shall be exempt from execution or other liability for the debts of the Cooperative and no Member or Nonmember Patron shall be liable or responsible for any debts or liabilities of the Cooperative.

ARTICLE 4 MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Section 4.1 Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of the Members shall be held at such time, and hour and in such manner, method, and location (whether in-person, virtual, teleconference or through a different format) in each year as may be determined by the Board of Directors, which shall be designated in the notice of the meeting, for the purpose of electing board members, passing upon reports covering the previous year, and transacting such other business as may come before the meeting. It shall be the responsibility of the Board of Directors to make adequate plans and preparations for the annual meeting. If the election of directors shall not be held on the day designated for the annual meeting, or at any adjournment thereof, the Board of Directors shall cause the election to be held at a special meeting of the members as soon thereafter as conveniently may be. Failure to hold the annual meeting at the designated time shall not work a forfeiture or dissolution of the Cooperative.

Section 4.2 Notice of Annual Meeting

The notice of the annual meeting shall be given by:

- a) mailing the notice to each Member personally at the Member's last known post office address which for a Member cooperative means notice mailed to the secretary of the cooperative; or
- b) publication in a legal newspaper published in the county of the principal place of business of the Cooperative; or
- c) publication in a magazine, periodical, or other publication of the Cooperative that is regularly published by or on behalf of the Cooperative and circulated generally among the Members.

The notice of the annual meeting must be published at least two (2) weeks before the date of the meeting or election or mailed at least fifteen (15) days before the date of the meeting. Upon the mailing of the notice of the annual meeting of Members, the Secretary of the Cooperative shall execute a certificate setting forth a correct copy of the notice and showing the date of the mailing thereof and that the same was mailed within time and in the manner herein prescribed. Said

certificate shall be made a part of the record of the meeting. Alternatively, if permitted and as required by law, notice may be given to a Member electronically.

Section 4.3 Special Meetings

Special meetings of the Members may be called by a resolution of a majority of the of the Board of Directors, or upon written petition signed by not less than twenty percent (20%) of all the Members, and it shall thereupon be the duty of the Secretary of the Cooperative to cause notice of such a meeting to be given as hereinafter provided. Special meetings of the Members may be held at the principal place of business of the Cooperative, or at another conveniently located place as determined by the Board of Directors and specified in the notice of the special meeting.

Section 4.4 Notice of Special Member's Meeting

Notice of the date, hour, manner, method, and location (whether in-person, virtual, teleconference, or through a different format) of a special meeting may be given by:

- a) mailing the special Member's meeting notice to each Member personally at the Member's last known post office address, which for a Member cooperative means notice mailed to the secretary of the cooperative; or
- b) publication in a legal newspaper published in the county of the principal place of business of the Cooperative; or
- c) publication in a magazine, periodical, or other publication of the Cooperative that is regularly published by or on behalf of the Cooperative and circulated generally among Members.

The special Members' meeting notice shall state the date, hour, manner, method, and location (whether in-person, virtual, teleconference, or through a different format), and purpose of the special Members' meeting, and shall be issued within ten (10) days from and after the presentation of a Members' petition. The special Members' meeting must be held thirty (30) days after the date of the presentation of the Members' petition. Upon the mailing of the notice of the special Members' meeting of Members, the Secretary of the Cooperative shall execute a certificate setting forth a correct copy of the notice and showing the date of the mailing thereof and that the same was mailed within time and in the manner herein prescribed. Said certificate shall be made a part of the record of the meeting. Alternatively, if permitted and as required by law, notice may be given to a Member electronically.

Section 4.5 Failure to Receive Notice

The failure of any Member to receive notice of an annual or special Members' meeting shall not invalidate any action which may be taken at such meeting.

Section 4.6 Quorum

At least fifty (50) Members present in person, or represented by mail ballot or electronic vote/ballot shall constitute a quorum. In case of a joint membership, the presence at a meeting of either or both joint members shall be regarded as the presence of one Member. If less than a quorum is

represented at any meeting, a majority of those present in person may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice; provided a new notice is submitted by mail, publication, and/or electronically as permitted by law, to each Member specifying the time and place of the adjourned meeting. The minutes of each meeting shall contain a list by reference of the Members present in person. The presence of a sufficient number of Members to constitute a quorum at any Member meeting shall be verified by the Chair and Secretary and shall be reported in the minutes of such meeting.

Section 4.7 Voting

Each Member shall be entitled to one (1) vote and no more upon each matter submitted to a vote at a meeting of the Members. A Nonmember Patron (as that term is defined herein) shall have no voting rights. At all meetings of the Members at which a quorum is present all questions shall be decided by a simple majority vote of the Members voting thereon at such meeting in person, by mail, or electronic means, except as provided by law, the Articles of Incorporation or these by Bylaws. Joint Members shall be entitled to one (1) vote and no more upon each matter submitted to a vote at a meeting of the Members.

No Member shall be entitled to vote by proxy except that a spouse may vote on behalf of the Member unless the Member has indicated otherwise to the Cooperative.

A Member shall be entitled to submit a vote at a meeting of the Members on any matter submitted to a vote of the Members at such meeting by any of the following methods (but not more than one) as determined by the Board of Directors:

- a) in person,
- b) mail, or
- c) electronic voting.

Any Member which is a legal business entity, association, or body politic or subdivision thereof, may be required to furnish appropriate evidence of the authority of its representative to vote in its behalf. Such authority shall be furnished to the Secretary of the Cooperative before such representative votes at any such meeting. A representative or officer may also vote as an individual, if a Member.

Section 4.8 Voting by Mail

Any Member may vote by mail on the ballot herein prescribed, upon any election, motion, resolution, or amendment to be acted upon at such meeting. The ballot shall be in the form prescribed by the Board of Directors and shall contain the exact text of such motion, resolution, or amendment in which such Member may indicate their affirmative or negative vote thereon, and, in the case of an election ballot, shall contain the exact name of each candidate for office and shall contains space opposite each name in which such Member may indicate their vote thereon. Such ballot envelope shall be signed by the Member or its duly authorized representative and upon receipt by the Secretary of the Board by the time on the date of the meeting specified in the notice shall be accepted and counted as the vote of the Member. The failure of such absent member to receive a copy of such ballot shall not invalidate any action that may be taken by the Members at

any such meeting. Any ballot not properly completed or submitted, or not timely received, shall be invalid.

Section 4.9 Voting by Electronic Means

It shall be within the Board of Director's sole discretion whether to have any matter up for a vote by the Members of the Cooperative be voted on by electronic means. If the Board of Directors allows electronic voting, the ballot shall be available by electronic means in accordance with procedures authorized by the Board of Directors, including a means by which a Member may indicate an affirmative or negative vote. The ballot shall be in the form prescribed by the Board of Directors and shall contain the exact text of the proposed motion, resolution, or amendment to be acted on at the meeting and spaces opposite the text of the motion, resolution, or amendment in which the Member may indicate an affirmative or negative vote thereon, and, in the case of an election ballot, shall contain the exact name of each candidate for office and shall contain space opposite each name in which such Member may indicate their vote thereon. The procedure shall specify the date and time by which an electronic ballot must be received by the Cooperative, or its designee, to be counted. If a properly completed and submitted ballot of a member is received by the Cooperative, or its designee, through electronic means by the time on the date of the meeting specified in the notice, the ballot shall be accepted and counted as the vote of the Member at such meeting. Any ballot not properly completed or submitted, or not timely received, shall be invalid. The failure of any Member to receive a copy of any motion, resolution, amendment, candidate slate, or a ballot by electronic means shall not invalidate any action which may be taken by the Members at any meeting.

Section 4.10 Order of Business

The order of business at the annual meeting of the Members shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

Section 4.11 Business and Fiscal Reports

The officers of the Cooperative shall submit reports to the Members at the regular Members' meeting covering the business of the Cooperative for the previous fiscal year that shows the condition of the Cooperative at the close of the fiscal year.

ARTICLE 5 DIRECTORS

Section 5.1 General Powers

The business and affairs of the Cooperative shall be managed under the direction of a board of seven (7) directors, which shall exercise all of the powers of the Cooperative, except such as are by law, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws conferred upon or reserved to the Members.

The Board of Directors shall have the power to make and adopt such rules and regulations, not inconsistent with law, the Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws, as it may deem advisable for the management, administration, and regulation of the business and affairs of the Cooperative.

Such powers shall also include the determination and fixing of classification of services and rates to be charged by the Cooperative for service furnished.

Section 5.2 Director Districts

The territory served or to be served by the Cooperative shall be divided into seven (7) districts with one Director position elected from each district. The Cooperative shall attempt to stagger Director terms so that an approximately equal number of Directors are elected each year. The boundary lines of such districts, as initially established, may be changed from time to time by the Board of Directors to maintain an approximate equal number of Members in each district. Each Member is allowed to vote for all directors regardless of the district the Director will represent. A candidate for director must designate the district they seek to represent. That district must be determined by the Member's principal residence.

Each district shall be represented by one and only one director. A director shall be nominated and elected for the terms and in the manner provided in the Bylaws. The director districts are indicated on the official map at the cooperative business office.

Section 5.3 Election and Tenure of Office

Unless otherwise provided in these Bylaws, Directors shall be elected to serve for a three-year period. The nominee from each district receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected as a Director. In the event of a tie vote, the winner shall be chosen by the flip of a coin. Directors shall be elected by ballot from the Members to serve until their successors have been elected and shall have been qualified subject to the provisions of these Bylaws. No Director shall be eligible to serve more than six (6) consecutive three-year terms as a Director.

Section 5.4 Director Qualifications

Members must meet the following requirements to be eligible to be nominated as a Director, elected as a Director, and must continue to meet the following requirements to remain a Director:

- a) be a Member of the Cooperative;
- b) they are a natural person and are purchasing and taking delivery of electric energy in the district from which the Member is nominated or elected;
- c) have the capacity to enter into legally binding contracts
- d) has been a Member of the Cooperative for at least one (1) year prior to the meeting in which the Member is up for election to become a Director;
- e) while a Director, and during the five (5) years immediately prior to the meeting in which the Member is up for election to become a Director, not be convicted of, plead guilty to, a felony or a crime involving theft or dishonesty;
- f) not have a conflict of interest, financial or otherwise, with the Cooperative;

- g) not be an employee, grandparent (including step or in-law), parent (including step or in-law), child (including step or in-law), brother (including step, in-law, or half-brother), sister (including step, in-law, or half-sister), or spouse of an employee of the Cooperative; and
- h) annually complete and sign an independence and conflict of interest certification and disclosure form approved by the Board of Directors.

A legal entity that is a Member may designate an individual who is an owner of the legal entity and actively involved in the operation of the legal entity to be eligible for election as a Director, provided the individual meets the applicable requirements for eligibility as provided in the Bylaws to become and remain a Director.

Section 5.5 <u>Campaign Finance Disclosure</u>

- a) Campaign Contributions discouraged. To promote the fairness and transparency of the election process and the best interests of the Cooperative, a candidate for election on the Board of Directors is encouraged to campaign without accepting financial contributions, in-kind contributions, gifts, donations, loans to support the campaign, promises, or pledges to transfer money, goods, or services, paid personal services, or any other type of financial contribution from any individual, legal entity, Cooperative Member or group of Members, group of other persons, business, political party, interest group, association, union, or any other entity.
- b) Members who are candidates for the Board of Directors must follow the requirements set forth below to be eligible to be elected as a Director:
 - i. If a candidate chooses to accept campaign contributions of any kind, then the contributions must be freely disclosed as required in this Bylaw.
 - 1. "Campaign Contribution" means: a financial contribution; an in-kind contribution; a gift; a donation; a loan to support the campaign; a promise or pledge to transfer money, goods, or services; paid personal services; or any other type of contribution from an individual, entity, group, business, partnership, political party, interest group, or union.
 - 2. A candidate who does not accept Campaign Contributions may voluntarily disclose that decision to the Cooperative's members by filing a statement in the manner and form approved and directed by the Cooperative.
 - ii. A candidate who chooses to accept Campaign Contributions is required to file with the Cooperative, for posting by the Cooperative, on its website, a weekly Contributions Report (which will be provided by the Cooperative), containing:
 - 1. the name and address of the source of each Campaign Contribution;

- 2. the amount of each contribution or the nature and value of an in-kind contribution:
- 3. the date the candidate accepted each contribution; and
- 4. the contributor's occupation and employer (from individual contributors).
- iii. A candidate who spends his or her own personal funds on the candidate's own campaign is not required to file a Contributions Report.
- iv. A candidate is required to file his or her Contributions Reports on the following schedule:
 - 1. A candidate required to file a Contributions Report shall file on each Friday before the election for the Board of Directors.
 - 2. A candidate shall file a final Contributions Report on the 30th day after the date of the election for the Board of Directors that includes any Campaign Contributions not previously disclosed.
- v. If a candidate is elected, or appointment after the election to a director's position, and the candidate chooses to accept contributions intended to help retire the candidate's campaign debt, the candidate is required to file with the Cooperative for posting b the Cooperative on its website a Contributions report within 30 days after accepting each contribution.
- c) Any member who believes that a candidate or director has violated this Bylaw ("Complainant") may file a written complaint ("Complaint") with the Cooperative at the Cooperative's headquarters, together with any documents in support of the Complaint. The form of the Complaint will be provided to the Complainant. The Cooperative will send a copy of the Complaint to the candidate or director against whom the Complaint is made ("Respondent").
 - i. Once chosen, the Cooperative shall send the Complaint to the arbitrator with a directive to handle the Complaint as expeditiously as possible in accordance with this Bylaw. The arbitrator shall promptly review the Complaint and set a hearing on the Complaint as soon as possible. All parties shall be given at least three (3) days' written (written includes e-mail, text, or other electronic means) notice of the hearing on the Complaint.
 - ii. The Complainant and Respondent shall be entitled to appear at the hearing with legal counsel and present evidence for and against the charges made in the Complaint. The Complainant shall bear the burden of proof and the burden of proof shall be by a "preponderance of the evidence." Promptly after the hearing, the arbitrator shall determine whether the Complainant has met the burden that a violation of this Bylaw was committed. If the arbitrator determines that a violation

of this Bylaw was committed, the arbitrator shall prescribe the penalty to be imposed for the violation, considering the nature and severity of the violation. The penalty must be appropriate to the violation committed.

- d) The Board of Directors shall select a qualified neutral arbitrator, who shall be an attorney licensed to practice law in the State of Minnesota, to decide violations of this Bylaw and prescribe appropriate penalties as authorized under this Bylaw. The arbitration shall be finally and exclusively decided by binding arbitration in accordance with the American Arbitration Association ("AAA") Commercial Arbitration Rules. The Cooperative's legal counsel shall meet and inform the arbitrator of his/her responsibilities under this Bylaw. The Cooperative shall pay any fees and expenses to the arbitrator for services rendered. The Cooperative shall indemnify the arbitrator against all claims that may be brought against him/her, which arise from the performance of the arbitrator's duties under this Bylaw.
- e) Penalties may include:
 - i. an order to cease and desist from the rule,
 - ii. a reprimand,
- iii. a censure,
- iv. a disqualification of the Respondent's candidacy and removal from the Board of Directors,
- v. a recommendation that the Director resign or be removed from office, or
- vi. such other penalty as the arbitrator determines is appropriate.
- f) The arbitrator shall submit his/her award and the factual basis for the determination on the Complaint and the penalty to be imposed, if any, in writing (in writing would include email or other electronic means but not text) promptly to the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall promptly execute the decision of the arbitrator. The arbitration shall be held in Cook County, Minnesota. Any award rendered by the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the Complainant, Respondent, and the Cooperative and judgment upon any award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having jurisdiction. The Members and the Cooperative waive all rights to a trial by jury in connection with anything contained in this Bylaw.
- g) The arbitrator may consult with the Cooperative's legal counsel in the discharge of his/her duties. The arbitrator may also utilize an assigned Cooperative staff member to coordinate notices and arrangements for a hearing, the hearing location, a hearing tape/transcript, and such other services as the arbitrator deems necessary to carry out his/her duties under this Bylaw.

- h) The Cooperative will not be responsible, and no Member shall make any claim against the Cooperative, for the payment of attorneys' fees and costs, arising from the conduct of the election for directors under the provision of this Bylaw.
- i) By becoming a candidate for the Board of Directors, all candidates hereby acknowledge and agree to the requirements of this Bylaw and understand that a violation of this Bylaw could subject the candidate to the penalties described in this Bylaw.

Section 5.6 Nominations

- a) Any Member, meeting the qualifications of Section 5.4, above, who desires to be a candidate for the Board of Directors, may be nominated by submitting a petition, in a form approved by the Board of Directors, signed by 15 Members who have voting rights from the district in which the Member seeks nomination.
- b) The Member's petition shall be submitted to the Secretary not more than 130 days, but not less than 70 days before the date of the annual meeting of the Members. A Member who submits a petition either
 - i. before 130 days before the date of the annual meeting of the Members, or
 - ii. after 70 days before the date of the annual meeting of the Members, shall not be considered as a candidate for Director. The Cooperative shall provide the Members with notice of these requirements on its website, in its regular publications, and through such other means as established by the Board of Directors and/or the Cooperative.
- c) The Secretary shall prepare and post on the Cooperative's website a list of nominations for the Board of Directors at least 45 days before the annual meeting of the Members. The Cooperative shall also include a list of nominations for the Board of Directors with the annual meeting notice provided to the Members.
- d) Members may not nominate an individual to be a candidate for the Board of Directors at the annual meeting or any special meeting.
- e) If there are no petitions that meet the requirements set forth in the Bylaws, the Board of Directors shall nominate at least two (2) nominees from the District up for election. Nominations by the Board of Directors shall be posted on the Cooperative's website at least 30 days before the annual meeting of the Members. The Cooperative shall also include a list of nominations by the Board of Directors with the annual meeting notice provided to the Members.

Section 5.7 Vacancies

Vacancies occurring on the Board of Directors shall be filled by a majority vote of the remaining Directors; and the Director(s) thus elected shall serve until the next annual meeting of the Members to serve the unexpired term or until their successors shall have elected and shall have qualified. A

notice of vacancy will be provided by Cooperative in the manner and method as determined by the Board of Directors. The notice will allow at least 5 days for interested applicants to submit their name for consideration. The Board of Directors will interview interested applicants and may select a successor to the Director vacating.

If there are no applications the Board of Directors will fill the vacancy by appointment. Directors thus elected shall serve the unexpired term of that position. The Board of Directors may declare a vacancy if the Board member has missed three (3) consecutive regular board meetings our four (4) regular board meetings in any twelve (12) month period without valid reason.

Section 5.8 Compensation

Directors shall not receive any salary for their services as such, except that the board may, by resolution, authorize reasonable compensation for service to the Cooperative. If authorized by the Board of Directors, Directors may also be reimbursed for expenses actually and necessarily incurred in carrying out such Cooperative business or granted a reasonable per diem allowance by the board in lieu of detailed accounting for some of these expenses. No Director shall receive compensation for serving the Cooperative in any other capacity, nor shall any close relative of a Director receive compensation for serving the Cooperative, unless the payment and amount of compensation shall be specifically authorized by an affirmative vote of the members, or the service by the Director or his/her close relative shall have been certified by the Board of Directors as an emergency measure.

Section 5.9 Accounting System and Reports

The Board of Directors shall cause to be established and maintained a complete accounting system, which, among other things, subject to applicable laws and rules and regulations or regulatory bodies, shall conform to such accounting system, as may from time to time be designated by the Administrator of the Rural Utilities Service (RUS) of the United States Department of Agriculture. The Board of Directors shall, after the close of each fiscal year, cause to be made a full and complete audit of the accounts, books, and financial condition of the Cooperative as of the end of this fiscal year. A summary of the audit report shall be made available to the members for inspection.

Section 5.10 Removal of Directors by Members

The Members shall have the power to remove Directors at a Members' meeting by an affirmative vote with a quorum present. Directors shall be removed only for cause. Charges against a Director must be specific and must be filed with the Secretary of the Cooperative at least twenty (20) days before the annual meeting or a special meeting called for this purpose, together with a petition signed by at least ten percent (10%) of the Members of the Cooperative in that district, requesting removal of the Director. Upon the filing of such a petition, the Secretary of the Cooperative shall immediately notify the Director so charged, in writing, at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting of the Members. Prior to the vote on the removal of the Director sought to be removed, the Director so charged shall be allowed representation by counsel, shall be allowed to present evidence, shall be allowed to cross- examine witnesses, and shall be allowed to be heard in person at the meeting.

The proceedings shall be presided over by a neutral chairperson, and the proceedings must be recorded.

ARTICLE 6 INDEMNIFICATION

Section 6.1 Indemnification of Directors

The Cooperative shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Cooperative's Directors, officers, agents, and employees from and against liability to the extent that their acts or omission constituting the grounds for the alleged liability were performed in their official capacity, were based upon what a reasonable person would deem to be good faith business judgments and belief that the acts or omission were in the best interest of the Cooperative. The Cooperative may purchase insurance to cover such indemnification.

ARTICLE 7 MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

Section 7.1 Regular Meetings

A reorganizational meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held at the first regularly scheduled board meeting following the annual meeting. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held monthly at such date, hour, manner, method, and location (whether in-person, virtual, teleconference, or through a different format) as the Board of Directors may provide by resolution. Such regular monthly meetings may be held without notice other than such-resolution fixing the time and place thereof.

Section 7.2 Special Meetings

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President or any three (3) Directors. The person or persons authorized to call special meetings of the Board of Directors may fix the date, hour, manner, method, and location (whether in-person, virtual, teleconference, or through a different format) for the holding of the meeting.

Section 7.3 Notice of Board Meetings

Notice of date, hour, manner, method, and location (whether in-person, virtual, teleconference, or through a different format) of any special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given at least three (3) days prior thereto, by written notice, delivered personally, by mail to each director at his last known address, or by electronic transmission. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail so addressed, with postage prepaid thereon. If given by electronic transmission, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when sent by electronic transmission. The attendance of a director at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except in case a director shall attend a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction or any business because the meeting shall not have been lawfully called or convened.

Section 7.4 Quorum

A majority of the members of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board. If less than a majority of the directors are present at said meeting, a majority of the directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.

Section 7.5 Manner of Acting

The acts of the majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the acts of the Board of Directors.

Section 7.6 Meeting Attendance

If authorized by a majority of the Board of Directors, Directors may participate in a board meeting, special meeting, or any lawfully constituted committee, by means of conference telephone or other means of remote communication by which all persons participating in the meeting can simultaneously hear each other and participate in the meeting. Participation in a meeting pursuant to this section shall constitute presence at such meeting.

Section 7.7 Board Action by Written Consent

Without a Board of Directors' meeting, the Board of Directors may take an action required or permitted to be taken at a board meeting if the action is:

- a) taken by all Directors and
- b) evidenced by one or more written or electronic consents:
 - i. describing the action taken;
 - ii. signed by each director (such signature can be electronic);
- iii. delivered to the Cooperative; and
- iv. included with the Cooperative's board meeting minutes. A written consent has the effect of, and may be described as, an action of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 8 OFFICERS

Section 8.1 Number

The officers of the Cooperative shall be a President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer, and such other officers as may be determined by the Board of Directors from time to time. The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be held by the same person.

Section 8.2 Election and Term of Office

The officers shall be elected annually by and from the Board of Directors at the reorganization meeting of the Board of Directors. If the election of officers shall not be held at the reorganization meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter as practical. Each officer shall hold office until the first meeting of the Board following the next succeeding annual meeting of the Members or until their successors shall have been elected and shall have qualified. A vacancy in any office shall be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

Section 8.3 Removal

Any person appointed to a position by a majority vote of Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment the best interest of the Cooperative will be served thereby.

Section 8.4 President

The President shall:

- a) preside, or designate another individual to preside, at all Board and Member meetings.
- b) Sign any deeds, mortgages, notes, bonds, contracts, or other instruments authorized by the Board of Directors to be executed, except in cases in which the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors by these bylaws to some other officer or agent of the Cooperative, or shall be required by law to be otherwise signed or executed, and
- c) In general perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board from time to time.

Section 8.5 Vice-President

In the absence of the President, or in the event of his/her inability or refusal to act, the Vice-President shall perform the duties of the President, and when so acting shall have all the powers of and be subject to the restrictions upon the President. The Vice-President shall also perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the Board.

Section 8.6 Secretary

The Secretary shall be responsible for:

- a) keeping the minutes of the meetings of the Members and of the Board in books provided for that purpose;
- b) see that all notices are duly given in accordance with these Bylaws or as required by law;

- c) the safe keeping of the corporate books and records and the seal of the Cooperative and affixing the seal of the Cooperative to all certificates of membership prior to the issue thereof, and to all documents, the execution of which on behalf of the Cooperative under its seal is duly authorized in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws;
- d) keeping a register of the names and post office addresses of all Members;
- e) keeping on file at all times a complete copy of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Cooperative containing all amendments thereto (which copy shall always be open to the inspection by any Member) and at the expense of the Cooperative, furnishing a copy of the Bylaws of all amendments thereto to any Member upon request; and
- f) in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the Board.

Section 8.7 Treasurer

The Treasurer shall be responsible for:

- a) custody of all funds and securities of the Cooperative;
- b) the receipt of and the issuance of receipts for all monies due and payable to the Cooperative and for the deposit of all such monies in the name of the Cooperative in such bank or banks as shall be selected in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws; and
- c) the general performance of all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the Board.

Section 8.8 General Manager/Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors may appoint a General Manager/Chief Executive Officer who may be but shall not be required to be a Member of the Cooperative. The General Manager/Chief Executive Officer shall perform such duties as the Board of Directors from time to time require and shall have such authority as the Board of Directors may from time-to-time vest in the General Manager/Chief Executive Officer.

Section 8.9 Bonds of Officers

The Treasurer and any other officer or agent of the Cooperative charged with responsibility for the custody of any of its funds or property shall be bonded in such sum and with such surety as the Board of Directors shall determine. The Board of Directors at its discretion may also require any other officer, agent, or employee of the Cooperative to be bonded in such amount and with such surety as it shall determine.

Section 8.10 Insurance

The Cooperative may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of an individual who is or was a Director or Officer of the Cooperative. This insurance is against liability, including judgment, settlement, or otherwise, or reasonable expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, asserted against or incurred by the Cooperative or the individual in his or her individual capacity, or arising from the individual's status as a Director or Officer of the Cooperative.

ARTICLE 9 NON-PROFIT OPERATION

Section 9.1 <u>Interest or Dividends on Capital Prohibited.</u>

The Cooperative shall at all times be operated on a cooperative non-profit basis for the mutual benefit of its Members. No interest or dividends shall be paid or payable by the Cooperative on any capital furnished by its Members or Nonmember Patrons.

Section 9.2 Patronage Capital in Connection with Furnishing Electricity

In the furnishing of electric energy and/or electric service (electricity), the Cooperative's operations shall be so conducted that all Members will through their patronage furnish capital for the Cooperative. In order to induce patronage and to assure that the Cooperative will operate on a non-profit basis, the Cooperative is obligated to account on a patronage basis to all its Members for all amounts received and receivable from the furnishing of electricity in excess of operating costs, expenses, capital reserves, and/or additional reserves properly chargeable against the furnishing of electricity. All such amounts in excess of operating costs, expenses, capital reserves, and/or additional reserves properly chargeable against the furnishing of electricity at the moment of receipt by the Cooperative are received with the understanding that they are furnished by the Members as capital. In accordance with Minnesota Statutes Chapter 308A (and/or all revisions or replacements thereof), the net income of the Cooperative, except for amounts set aside as capital reserves and/or additional reserves, shall be allocated on the basis of patronage as provided in the Bylaws. The records of the Cooperative may show the interest of Members in the reserves.

The books and records of the Cooperative shall be set up and kept in such a manner that at the end of each fiscal year the amount of capital, if any, so furnished by each Member is clearly reflected and credited in an appropriate record to the capital account of each Member. The Cooperative shall, within a reasonable time after the close of the fiscal year, notify each Member of the amount of capital so credited or debited to the Member's account. All such amounts credited to the capital account of any Member shall have the same status as though they had been paid to the Member in cash in pursuance of a legal obligation to do so and the Member had then furnished the Cooperative corresponding amounts for capital.

Section 9.3 Patronage Capital in Connection with Furnishing Broadband Services

Those individuals/entities that receive broadband and related service(s) ("Broadband") from the Cooperative who are not Members, are nonmember patrons ("Nonmember Patrons"). The Nonmember Patrons shall sign a document provided by the Cooperative agreeing to be bound by the terms and conditions contained in the Bylaws and Articles of Incorporation or as part of

receiving Broadband from the Cooperative, agree to be bound by the terms and conditions contained in the Bylaws and Articles of Incorporation as a condition of receiving Broadband from the Cooperative. Nonmember Patrons are those individuals who are not qualified or eligible for membership in the Cooperative.

In the furnishing of Broadband, Cooperative's operations with respect to Broadband shall be so conducted that all Nonmember Patrons and Members who receive Broadband from the Cooperative will through their patronage furnish capital for the Cooperative for the Cooperative's Broadband operations. In order to induce patronage and to assure that the Cooperative will operate on a non-profit basis, the Cooperative is obligated to account on a patronage basis to all of its Nonmember Patrons and Members for all amounts received and receivable from the furnishing of Broadband in excess of operating costs, expenses, capital reserves, and/or additional reserves properly chargeable against the furnishing of Broadband. All such amounts in excess of operating costs, expenses, capital reserves, and/or additional reserves properly chargeable against the furnishing of Broadband at the moment of receipt by the Cooperative are received with the understanding that they are furnished by the Nonmember Patrons and Members as capital. In accordance with Minnesota Statutes Chapter 308A (and/or all revisions or replacements thereof), the net income of the Cooperative, except for amounts set aside as capital reserves and/or additional reserves, shall be allocated on the basis of patronage as provided in the Bylaws. The records of the Cooperative may show the interest of Nonmember Patrons and Members in the reserves.

The books and records of the Cooperative shall be set up and kept in such a manner that at the end of each fiscal year the amount of capital, if any, so furnished by each Nonmember Patron and Member is clearly reflected and credited in an appropriate record to the capital account of each Nonmember Patron and Member. The Cooperative shall, within a reasonable time after the close of the fiscal year, notify each Nonmember Patron and Member of the amount of capital so credited or debited to the Nonmember Patron's and Member's account. All such amounts credited to the capital account of any Nonmember Patron or Member shall have the same status as though they had been paid to Nonmember Patron or Member in cash in pursuance of a legal obligation to do so and the Member had then furnished the Cooperative corresponding amounts for capital.

Section 9.4 Miscellaneous

Funds and amounts, other than amounts received and receivable from the furnishing of electricity and Broadband and in excess of operating costs and expenses chargeable against the furnishing of electricity and Broadband ("Operating Margins"), received by the Cooperative that exceed the Cooperative's costs and expenses ("Non-Operating Margins") may be:

- a) allocated as capital credits in the same manner as the Cooperative allocates Operating Margins as capital credits or
- b) retained or used by the Cooperative as non-allocated capital and used to pay or offset any indebtedness, cost, expense, or to establish a reserve. Notwithstanding any contrary provision of these Bylaws, and to meet the Cooperative's reasonable needs, the Cooperative may accumulate and retain amounts exceeding those needed to meet current losses and expenses as the Board of Directors determines advisable

("Reasonable Reserves"). The Cooperative must keep records necessary to determine, at any time, each Member's rights and interest in Reasonable Reserves.

In the event of dissolution or liquidation of the Cooperative, after all outstanding indebtedness of the Cooperative shall have been paid, outstanding capital credits shall be retired without priority on a pro rata basis before any payments are made on account of property rights of Members. If, at any time prior to dissolution or liquidation, the Board of Directors shall determine that the financial condition of the Cooperative will not be impaired thereby, the capital credited to Members' and Nonmember Patrons' accounts may be retired in full or in part. The Board of Directors shall determine the method, basis, priority, and order of retirement, if any, for all accounts heretofore and hereafter furnished as capital. The Cooperative may retire and pay capital credits only if the Board of Directors determines that the retirement and payment will not adversely impact the Cooperative's financial condition. The retirement and payment of capital credits, to either Members or Nonmember Patrons, is in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors and re not affected by previous retirements and payments. The manner, method, and timing of retiring and paying capital credits, to either Members or Nonmember Patrons, may be determined only by the Board of Directors.

Capital credited to the account of each Member and Nonmember Patron shall be assignable only on the books of the Cooperative pursuant to written instruction from the assignor and only to successors in interest or successors in occupancy in all or part of such Member's or Nonmember Patron's premises served by the Cooperative unless the Board, acting under policies of general application, shall determine otherwise.

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Bylaws the Board of Directors at its discretion, shall have the power at any time to retire any capital credited to the account of a Member, Nonmember Patron, former Nonmember Patron, or former Member who shall have died. Such retirement shall be upon such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors, acting under policies of general application, shall determine; provided, however, that the financial condition of the Cooperative will not thereby be impaired.

The Members and Nonmember Patrons of the Cooperative, acknowledge that the terms and provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws shall constitute and be a contract between the Cooperative and each Member and Nonmember Patron, and both the Cooperative and each Member and Nonmember Patron are bound by such contract, as fully as though each Member and Nonmember Patron had individually signed a separate instrument containing such terms and provisions. The provisions of this Article of the Bylaws shall be called to the attention of each Member and Nonmember Patron of the Cooperative by posting in a conspicuous place in the Cooperative's office.

As reasonable and fair, the Cooperative may allocate capital credits to classes of similarly situated Members or Nonmember Patrons under different manners, methods, and timing, provided the Cooperative allocates capital credits to similarly situated Members or Nonmember Patrons under the same manner, method, and timing.

The Cooperative may regularly impose a reasonable dormancy or service charge for each year a current or former Member or Nonmember Patron fails to claim capital credits retired to the

Member, Nonmember Patron, former Nonmember Patron, or former Member. As allowed by law, the Cooperative may retain capital credits retired to a Member, Nonmember Patron, former Nonmember Patron, or former Member, but not claimed by the Member, Nonmember Patron, former Nonmember Patron, or former Member within the time period set forth by law.

Regardless of a statute of limitation or other time limitation, upon retiring capital credits allocated to a Member, Nonmember Patron, former Nonmember Patron, or former Member, the Cooperative may recoup, offset, or setoff an amount owed to the Cooperative by a Member, Nonmember Patron, former Nonmember Patron, or former Member, including any interest and late payment fees, by reducing the allocated amount of retired capital credits paid to the Member, Nonmember Patron, former Nonmember Patron, or former Member by the amount owed to the Cooperative.

Separate records and accounts shall be kept regarding capital credits received by the Cooperative from any entity which the Cooperative is a Member and the Board of Directors shall have the sole discretion whether to pay any capital credits received by the Cooperative as a result of the Cooperative's membership in any entity.

Section 9.5 Patronage Refunds in Connection with Furnishing Other Services

In the event that the Cooperative should engage in the business of furnishing goods or services other than electric energy or Broadband, all amounts received and receivable therefrom which are in excess of costs and expenses properly chargeable against the furnishing of such goods may be allocated annually and returned to the Members of the Cooperative or may be used by the Cooperative as permanent, non-allocated capital. In addition, all amounts allocated to the Cooperative may be allocated to the Members of the Cooperative or may be used by the Cooperative as permanent, non-allocated capital. If allocated to the Members, the Board of Directors shall determine the method, basis, priority, and order of retirement, if any, for all such amounts heretofore or hereafter allocated to the Members of the Cooperative.

Section 9.6 Agreement

Each current and former Member and Nonmember Patron agree that:

- a) capital credits are not securities under state or federal law;
- b) the Member's or Nonmember Patron's right to capital credits vests, accrues, becomes redeemable, and becomes payable only upon the Cooperative retiring the capital credits as provided in these Bylaws, and not upon the Cooperative allocating the capital credits; and
- c) as required by law, each Member or Nonmember Patron will pay any tax or similar amount on allocated or retired capital credits.

ARTICLE 10 DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

The Cooperative may, at any meeting of its Board of Directors, sell, mortgage, lease, or exchange its properties and assets upon such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may deem reasonable and necessary and in the best interests of the Cooperative; provided, however, that if a sale or transfer contemplates a merger, liquidation, or dissolution of the Cooperative, or the sale/disposition of substantially all of the property and assets of the Cooperative, authorization must first be obtained by the affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds of the Members present in person or by other permitted means at any regular or special meeting of the Cooperative's Members at which a quorum of the Members is registered as being present or represented present by other permitted means approves the sale/disposition of substantially all of the property and assets of the Cooperative.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Board of Directors, without authorization from the Members, shall have the full power and authority to borrow money from the United States of America or any agency or instrumentality thereof or from any other lending institution in connection with such borrowing to authorize the making and issuance of bonds, notes, or other evidence of indebtedness and to secure the payment thereof, to authorize the execution and delivery of a mortgage or mortgages, or a deed or deeds of trust upon, or the pledging or encumbrancing of any or all the properties and assets of the Cooperative, whether acquired or to be acquired, and wherever situated, as well as the revenues and income therefrom, all upon such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors shall determine.

ARTICLE 11 CORPORATE SEAL

The corporate seal of the Cooperative shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Cooperative and the words "Corporate Seal – Minnesota."

ARTICLE 12 FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Cooperative shall begin on the first day of January of each year and end on the thirty-first day of December of each calendar year.

ARTICLE 13 FINANCIAL TRANSACTION

Section 13.1 Contracts

Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws the Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers, agent, or agents to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name and on behalf of the Cooperative, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 13.2 Checks, Drafts and Orders

All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, and all notes, bonds or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Cooperative shall be signed by such officer or

officers, agent or agents, employee or employees of the Cooperative and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors

Section 13.3 Deposits and Investments

All funds except petty cash of the Cooperative shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Cooperative in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 14 LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Board of Directors may, from time to time, authorize and direct that liability insurance be obtained to insure the Cooperative, its Members, Directors, officers, employees or agents, including personal liability of any said persons, against liability resulting from any and all acts performed or done by or on behalf of the Cooperative, or in the ordinary course of acting on behalf of the Cooperative, including liability for negligence and nonfeasance, and may further authorize and direct that all premiums for such insurance shall be paid by the Cooperative, and any such premiums paid shall not be considered compensation to any person thereby covered. Provided, however, that such insurance shall not insure against deliberate malfeasance of any person, and provided, further, that the existence or nonexistence of any such insurance, or limits thereto, shall not affect the liability of any such Member, Director, officer, employee, or agent to the Cooperative for any such act or failure to act.

ARTICLE 15 MISCELLANEOUS

Section 15.1 Waiver of Notice

Any Member or Director may waive in writing any notice of a meeting required to be given by these Bylaws. The attendance of a Member or Director at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting by such Member or Director, except in case a Member or Director shall attend a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business on the grounds that the meeting has not been lawfully called or convened.

Section 15.2 Rules of Order

Except as otherwise provided by the Board at any time, and except as otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, the rules contained in the most recent edition of *Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised*, govern all Member and Board of Director's meetings, in all cases to which they are applicable.

ARTICLE 16 BYLAW AMENDMENT

These Bylaws may be altered, amended, or repealed by the Members by a majority vote of the Members present in person or by other permitted means at any regular or special meeting of the Cooperative's Members at which a quorum of the Members is registered as being present or represented present by other permitted means. Except as otherwise provided in a Bylaw amendment, an amendment is effective the first calendar day after the vote approving the amendment.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, these Amended and Restated Bylaws were approved and adopted by the Cooperative's membership on June 4, 2022, and the following officers' signatures have been affixed in attestation thereof.

Mike Littfin President

Donna Lunke Secretary